
 
 

 
 Healthier Together 

13307 Miami Lane Caldwell, ID 83607 (208) 455-5300 FAX (208) 454-7722 

 

Board of Health Meeting 
Tuesday, May 18, 2021, 9:00 a.m. 

13307 Miami Lane, Caldwell, ID 83607  
 

Public comments specific to an agenda item for the May 18, 2021 Board of Health meeting can be submitted at 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/05182021 or by mail to: SWDH Board of Health, Attn: Administration Office, 
13307 Miami Lane, Caldwell, ID, 83607.  The period to submit public comments will close at 10:00 a.m. on 
Monday, May 17, 2021.  
 
*Meeting Format : In-person attendance at the meeting will be limited. Anyone unable to attend the meeting in-
person is invited to view the meeting on their own device through live streaming available on  the SWDH You 
Tube channel. 

 
Agenda 

A = Board Action Required              G =Guidance      I = Information item 
  
   9:00   A  Call the Meeting to Order Chairman Bryan Elliott 

   9:02   Pledge of Allegiance  

   9:03   Roll Call Chairman Bryan Elliott 

   9:05 A Request for Additional Agenda items; Approval of Agenda Chairman Bryan Elliott 

   9:10   In-Person Public Comment 

   9:25 I  Open Discussion  SWDH Board Members 

   9:40 A Approval of Minutes – April 27, 2021 and May 4, 2021 Chairman Bryan Elliott 

   9:50 I  Introduction of New Employees Emily Geary, Jaime Aanensen, Doug Doney 

 10:00 I  April 2021 Expenditure and Revenue Report  Troy Cunningham 

 10:15 I  Contracts and Funding Sources  Troy Cunningham 

 10:25 A WICCC Advisory Committee Bylaws Approval Sarah Andrade, Sam Kenney 
 10:35   Break 

 10:45 A IADBH Executive Council Update  Commissioner Georgia Hanigan, Nikki Zogg 

 10:50 A County Contributions  Nikki Zogg 

 11:00 A FY2022 Budget Proposal Nikki Zogg 

 11:20 G Board of Health Email Inbox Nikki Zogg 

 11:30 A Region 3 Behavioral Health Board Contract Nikki Zogg 

 11:45 I  Director’s Report Nikki Zogg 

    Board Elections  

    Budget Committee Invites and Proxy Forms 

    Summer IADBH Resolutions and Meeting Proxy Forms 

 12:00   Adjourn 

 
 NEXT MEETING: Thursday, June 17, 2021 – Budget Committee - 9:00 a.m.  
      Board of Health - 9:30 a.m. 
      Lunch Break – 12:30 p.m. 
      Idaho Association of District Boards of Health – 1:30 p.m.   
  
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZn5O5zBiR6Hhjekl2JX_KQ
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCZn5O5zBiR6Hhjekl2JX_KQ


 

 
 

Adams, Canyon, Gem, Owyhee, Payette and Washington Counties 

 

BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, April 27, 2021 

 

BOARD MEMBERS:  

Georgia Hanigan, Commissioner, Payette County – present  

Lyndon Haines, Commissioner, Washington County - present 

Keri Smith, Commissioner, Canyon County - present 

Kelly Aberasturi, Commissioner, Owyhee County – present  

Viki Purdy, Commissioner, Adams County –- present 

Sam Summers, MD, Physician Representative – not present  

Bryan Elliott, Commissioner, Gem County – present 

     

STAFF MEMBERS:   

Nikki Zogg, Katrina Williams, Jaime Aanensen, Mitch Kiester, Jeff Buckingham 

 

Via Zoom: Doug Doney, Chuck Washington, Troy Cunningham, Ashley Anderson, Rachel Pollreis, 

Carol Julius, Emily Geary, Sam Kenney 

  

GUESTS:  Members of the public attending in person; Guests viewing live stream via SWDH You Tube 

page. 

 

CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman Bryan Elliott called the meeting to order at 9:10 a.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 

Kelly Aberasturi – present; Dr. Summers – not present; Chairman Elliott – present; Commissioner 

Hanigan – present; Commissioner Purdy – present; Commissioner Haines – present; Commissioner Smith 

- present 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Commissioner Smith asked for the process to add an action item for Commissioner Purdy’s resolution. 

Chairman Elliott explained open meeting concerns with the email sent by Commissioner Purdy to the 

whole Board. Commissioner Smith asked for clarification about how to add an agenda item and asked if 

the SWDH Board of Health bylaws address that.  

 

MOTION: Dr. Summers moved to accept the agenda as presented. Commissioner Smith seconded the 

motion. All in favor; motion carries.   

 

IN-PERSON PUBLIC COMMENT 

Board members heard members of the public present in-person public comment. 

 

OPEN DISCUSSION 

Board members engaged in open discussion.  

 

  



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  

April 27, 2021 

2 
 

Face coverings for SWDH staff 

Commissioner Smith was approached by SWDH staff asking about the face covering policy in place for 

SWDH staff. Commissioner Smith asked if the Board can provide guidance that might help our agency. 

Nikki Zogg explained that we currently require masks for staff when they are in common areas not when 

they are in their private office spaces. This interim policy is being re-evaluated and is on the agenda to 

discuss tomorrow, Wednesday, April 28th, at the leadership team’s weekly meeting.  

 

Septic Program 

Commissioner Smith has received inquiries from citizens requesting help with septic issues. She 

expressed her opinions about the septic program and asked, if as a board, can they provide some 

leadership help to SWDH? Nikki Zogg responded that the septic program has encountered challenges. 

Measures are being taken to come into compliance with state rules to protect drinking water, wells, 

private wells and others’ drinking water around them.  

 

Guidance opening up outdoor events  

Commissioner Smith asked for guidance regarding opening up outdoor events. Nikki responded that 

SWDH has not put restrictions on outdoor events. Managing these outdoor events is up to the independent 

businesses and organizers to manage. Our staff are available to provide guidance and review when 

requested. Commissioner Smith asked to issue guidance that says outdoor events are safe.  

 

Resolution 

Commissioner Purdy presented a resolution to help clarify that SWDH recommendations are not 

mandates. Board members discussed the resolution. Commissioner Haines discussed concerns about 

ensuring the resolution accomplishes the intended purpose of clarifying the recommendations. 

Commissioner Hanigan asked to ensure that the resolution does not limit future activities of SWDH as 

related to public health.  

 

Board members requested a special meeting to discuss and vote on the resolution.  

 

APPROVE MARCH 16, 2021 BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES AND MARCH 24, 

2021 SPECIAL BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES 

Board members reviewed the March 16, 2021 Board of Health meeting minutes and the March 24, 2021 

Special Board of Health meeting minutes.  

 

Commissioner Aberasturi requested an edit to reflect he attended in person on March 24, 2021.  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Smith moved to accept the minutes with the change requested by 

Commissioner Aberasturi. Commissioner Haines seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.  

 

MARCH 2021 EXPENDITURE AND REVENUE REPORT 

Troy Cunningham, Financial Manager, presented the March 2021 Expenditure and Revenue Report.  

 

FY21 BUDGET REVISION 

Troy Cunningham presented a request for additional spending authority. Last month, concerns regarding 

personnel spending authority were discussed. Commissioner Smith asked for clarification on whether the 

need for additional spending authority to meet personnel costs will impact next year’s budget or are these 

temporary positions? Nikki clarified that most of these positions are temporary limited-service positions 

meaning when the contract funds go away the positions will go away.  

 

Troy Cunningham requested additional spending authority in the amount of $1,060,000 to cover increased 

personnel costs mostly related to COVID-19. 

  



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  

April 27, 2021 

3 
 

MOTION: Commissioner Smith made a motion to approve the request for additional spending authority 

of $1,060,000 due to increased costs in personnel due to COVID-19 as outlined in the presentation. 

Commissioner Aberasturi seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes. 

 

RESOLUTION DISCUSSION 

This topic was covered previously. Commissioner Purdy asked that no edits be made to her resolution 

when it is presented to the Board at the special meeting next week. Board members discussed the 

importance of keeping the resolution concise to ensure it accomplishes the intended purpose of clarifying 

that SWDH has not issued mandates or requirements or enforced any COVID-19 related restrictions.   

 

ALIGNMENT OF JUNE BOARD OF HEALTH AND IADBH MEETINGS (6/17/2021) 

Nikki asked Board members if there is interest in aligning the date of the annual meeting of the Idaho 

Association of District Boards of Health (IADBH) scheduled for June 17, 2021 with the regularly 

scheduled June Board of Health meeting by moving the regular Board of Health meeting scheduled for 

Tuesday, June 22 to June 17, 2021 in the morning before IADBH. Board members agree combining the 

meetings into one date on June 17, 2021 is convenient. Katrina will make the appropriate change to the 

annual meeting notice to reflect the date change for the June Board of Health meeting.  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Haines made a motion to hold the regular June Board of Health meeting on 

Thursday, June 18 at 9:00 a.m. followed by the annual IADBH conference. Commissioner Purdy 

seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.   

 

WESTERN IDAHO COMMUNITY  CRISIS CENTER FISCAL YEAR 2022 BUDGET 

PROPOSAL 

Sam Kenney joined the meeting to discuss the Western Idaho Community Crisis Center (WIDCCC) 

budget proposal. Nikki explained that following conversation with Sarah Andrade, Lifeways Program 

Manager, she is requesting no action be taken on this action item due to uncertainty about how House Bill 

316 will impact funding.  

 

WIDCCC CONTRACT EXTENSION 

Board members did not receive the contract extension information for the WIDCCC contract in advance 

of the meeting. Chairman Elliott recommended this topic be carried over to the next Board of Health 

meeting. In addition, SWDH staff will adjust board packet material submission deadlines to ensure that 

materials are available for distribution to board members by the Friday before the regular Board meetings.  

 

Nikki asked that the contract extension topic be added to the Special Board of Health meeting in the 

interest of time sensitivity. Chairman Elliott will add this matter to the Special Board of Health meeting 

agenda.  

 

WIDCCC ADVISORY COMMITTEE BYLAWS APPROVAL 

The WIDCCC Advisory Committee has reviewed these bylaws and requested approval by the Board of 

Health. This topic will be carried over to the next regularly scheduled Board of Health meeting.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH FEES APPROVAL 

Jaime Aanensen and Mitch Kiester attended virtually to request approval of a fee of $850 for multiple test 

hole evaluations. Mitch clarified that up to eight test holes on one application will be included for 

individuals who are requesting health district evaluation prior to engineering process or prior to 

purchasing the property.  

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Hanigan made a motion to adopt the proposed fee of $850 for up to eight test 

holes. Commissioner Aberasturi seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.  
 

 

 



Board of Health Meeting Minutes  

April 27, 2021 

4 
 

COUNTY CONTRIBUTIONS 

Nikki discussed potential impacts to county contributions based on what happens with House Bill 316. 

Board members discussed delaying the budget meeting by one month to allow time to assess what will 

change in what counties are and are not funding. If the bill passes, the implementation date will be moved 

from January 2022 to March 1, 2022. This implementation date will affect the state appropriation and 

Mike Kane has been following this on behalf of the public health districts.  

 

Board members agree to table the county contributions discussion until May 17, 2021. The annual Budget 

Committee meeting will take place in June.  

 

FISCAL YEAR 2022 BUDGET PROPOSAL 

Fiscal Year 2022 (FY22) Budget proposal review and approval will be tabled until May 17, 2021. Board 

members briefly discussed the inclusion of funding for COVID-19 response staff in the FY22 budget. 

Most of the work needs will be focused on increasing vaccination rates and access to vaccines as well as 

maintaining capacity to invesigate and monitor disease trends. 

 

Commissioner Smith asked for a breakdown/summary of these positions with names redacted including a 

summary of the staffing needs and where the funding sources are coming from and that those funding 

sources for FY22 are already confirmed.  

 

Action item: Troy and Nikki will develop the requested summary.  

 

IADBH EXECUTIVE COUNCIL UPDATE 

House Bill 316 was introduced to the Senate with amendments yesterday. It did go through the Senate and 

will go back to the House for concurrence then to the Governor’s desk.   

 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

Budget Committee Meeting Invitations and Proxy Forms 

Meeting invitations and proxy forms will be sent to each Board of County Commissioners via email.  

 

Board of Health Term Expirations 

The Board of Health Adams County representative’s term expires June 30, 2021. Katrina will send a 

request for appointment of representative to the Adams County Board of County Commissioners. 

Following receipt of that appointment, ballots will be distributed to each county for commissioners’ 

votes. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

At 1:07 p.m. Commissioner Hanigan made a motion to go into Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 

74-206(1)b and 74-206(1)(f). Commissioner Haines seconded the motion. Poll was taken Aberasturi – 

aye; Purdy – aye; Elliott – aye. Summers – not present. Smith – excused from meeting prior to Executive 

Session. Motion was unanimous. No action was taken. Open session was resumed at 1:08 p.m. 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 2:31 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted:    Approved as written: 

 

 

                

Nikole Zogg     Bryan Elliott    Date 

Secretary to the Board    Chairman    

 



 

 
 

Adams, Canyon, Gem, Owyhee, Payette and Washington Counties 

 

SPECIAL BOARD OF HEALTH MEETING MINUTES 

Tuesday, May 4, 2021 

 

BOARD MEMBERS:  

Georgia Hanigan, Commissioner, Payette County – present via Zoom 

Lyndon Haines, Commissioner, Washington County – present via Zoom 

Keri Smith, Commissioner, Canyon County - present in person 

Kelly Aberasturi, Commissioner, Owyhee County – present in person 

Viki Purdy, Commissioner, Adams County –- present in person 

Sam Summers, MD, Physician Representative – present in person 

Bryan Elliott, Commissioner, Gem County – present in person 

     

STAFF MEMBERS:   

Nikki Zogg, Katrina Williams, Sam Kenney 

 

Via Zoom: Doug Doney, Chuck Washington, Ashley Anderson 

  

GUESTS:  Members of the public attending in person; Guests viewing live stream via SWDH You Tube 

page. 

 

CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 

Chairman Bryan Elliott called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m.  

 

ROLL CALL 

Kelly Aberasturi – present; Dr. Summers - present; Chairman Elliott – present; Commissioner Hanigan – 

present via Zoom; Commissioner Purdy – present; Commissioner Haines – present via Zoom; 

Commissioner Smith – present 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Aberasturi moved to accept the agenda as presented. Commissioner. Dr. 

Summers seconded the motion. All in favor; motion carries.   

 

IN-PERSON PUBLIC COMMENT 

Board members heard members of the public present in-person public comment. 

 

RESOLUTION DISCUSSION AND VOTE 

Commissioner Purdy introduced the amended resolution for discussion and vote. She asked board 

members to consider making a clear statement regarding support of individuals and businesses to make 

decisions they feel best.  

 

Dr. Summers asked for discussion of what this resolution does that we are not already doing. 

Commissioner Smith responded that the resolution supports the mission to promote the health and 

wellness of those who live, work, and play in Southwest Idaho by prioritizing the whole health of our 

communities and by clearly stating we are giving rights back to the people to choose how they want to 

operate as families, individuals, schools, and businesses.  

 

Dr. Summers asked Nikki Zogg if there is anything in the resolution that inhibits future activities of the 

Board and the health district. Director Zogg expressed concern about the future ability of the health 



Special Board of Health Meeting Minutes  

May 4, 2021 

2 
 

district to conduct inspections and take actions to protect the health of the population in the areas of food 

safety and protection, licensed childcare, and potable water. The resolution as written could be interpreted 

to limit the public health district's ability and authority in these areas unrelated to COVID-19. Board 

members discussed wording changes needed to limit the scope of the resolution to COVID-19 specific 

instances.  

 

Commissioner Aberasturi suggested the resolution be very clear that it is specific to COVID-19 (SARS-

CoV-2). Commissioner Haines also requested that COVID-19 language be added to the last paragraph. 

Commissioner Hanigan also felt the last paragraph is overbroad concerning the conversations last week.  

 

Commissioner Elliott clarified that this resolution is not a law. It is simply intended to let the people know 

that this Board of Health supports the freedom of choice for individuals that we have always supported.  

 

Commissioner Elliott feels the resolution needs to be specific to COVID-19 or communicable diseases. If 

we have a new one, what will we know about it? Commissioner Smith suggested adding coronavirus to 

the title to narrow the scope. Dr. Summers asked that COVID-19 or SARS-CoV-2 be used rather than 

coronavirus.  

 

Commissioner Haines suggested adding phrasing to the title of the resolution to clarify what the 

resolution is about.  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Haines made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented with the addition of 

the phrase “Related to SARS-CoV-2 (COVID-19) and its variants or mutations” at the end of the title of 

the resolution. Commissioner Smith seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.  

 

LETTER TO THE CITIES 

Nikki asked if the Board would like her to respond to cities with information to consider if they are 

presented with a resolution similar to the one the Board of Health just adopted. Commissioner Purdy 

suggested edits to the letter to remove the second and third paragraphs.  

 

Commissioner Aberasturi noted that each of the cities are their own government agencies. Commissioner 

Smith stated that the letter is helpful as to the heart of why we did what we did and how we will move 

forward. She commended the writing of the letter and stated that mayors and city councils will have 

questions about what decisions were made and why. She supports the letter.  

 

Commissioner Elliott stated that the last paragraph could be removed or redone but other than that is very 

much in favor of pushing out this information. Nikki will consider the guidance provided by the Board 

but does not feel a motion is necessary.  

 

WESTERN IDAHO COMMUNITY CRISIS CENTER CONTRACT EXTENSION 

Sam Kenney, Project Manager, presented a request to extend the contract currently in place with 

Lifeways for management of the Western Idaho Community Crisis Center (WIDCCC) based on the 

recommendation of the Western Idaho Community Crisis Center Advisory Board.   

 

Commissioner Aberasturi commended Lifeways for their operation and management of the crisis center.  

 

MOTION: Commissioner Smith made a motion to grant the WIDCCC contract extension in place with 

Lifeways for a period of two years as allowable within the current contract. Commissioner Aberasturi 

seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 



Special Board of Health Meeting Minutes  

May 4, 2021 

3 
 

At 10:31 a.m. Commissioner Smith made a motion to go into Executive Session pursuant to Idaho Code 

74-206(b). Commissioner Haines seconded the motion. Roll was taken.  

 

At 10:51 a.m. Board members came out of Executive Session.  

 

Action taken as a result of Executive Session 

 

MOTION: Commissioner Smith made a motion to approve the Director’s Employee Agreement as 

presented with a 2% annual increase. Dr. Summers seconded the motion. All in favor; motion passes.  

  

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 11:00 a.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted:    Approved as written: 

 

 

             

Nikole Zogg     Bryan Elliott    Date 

Secretary to the Board    Chairman    

 



Target 83.3%
This month

CHANGE

Beginning Totals Apr 30

General Operating Fund 66,114$           14,710$           Revenues: 10,388,652$   

Millennium Fund -$                      73,643$           Carry Over: Behavioral Health Board (10,793)$         

LGIP Operating 2,630,723$     3,855,792$     CRP (7,102)$            

LGIP Vehicle Replacement 99,207$           99,663$           Parents As Teacher (190,760)$       

LGIP Capital 1,299,174$     1,299,174$     Net Revenue: 10,179,997$   1,092,713$       

Total 4,095,218$     5,342,982$     Expenditures: (9,175,719)$    (1,219,723)$     

Net Cash Position: 1,004,278$     (127,010)$        

Board of 

Health
Admin Clinic Services

Env & 

Community 

Health

General 

Support
Buildings Crisis Center Total YTD Total Budget

Percent of 

Direct

Fees -$                 -$                 64,251$           165,857$        -$                 330$                -$                 230,438$        1,265,036$     1,715,979$       74%

Contracts -$                 -$                 172,628$        366,838$        -$                 -$                 84,082$           623,547$        6,384,400$     5,801,838$       110%

Sale of Assets -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                      -$                      20,000$            0%

Interest -$                 875$                -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 875$                30,155$           80,000$            38%

District Funds 806$                11,782$           100,172$        38,677$           53,150$           32,478$           -$                 237,066$        2,452,838$     4,369,047$       

Carry-Over Funds -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                      208,655$        70,027$            

Other/Committed Funds -$                 107$                680$                -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 787$                47,566$           27,886$            171%

Monthly Revenue 806$                12,764$           337,731$        571,372$        53,150$           32,808$           84,082$           1,092,713$     10,388,652$   12,084,777$    86.0%

Year-to-Date Revenue 8,340$             152,256$        3,426,001$     4,852,467$     727,028$        339,148$        883,410$        10,388,652$   

Direct Budget 15,043$           299,905$        3,878,817$     3,036,833$     1,219,147$     602,422$        1,508,355$     10,560,522$   

Budget 15,043$           299,905$        4,724,791$     3,682,696$     1,238,534$     602,422$        1,521,386$     12,084,777$   

55.4% 50.8% 88.3% 159.8% 59.6% 56.3% 58.6% 98.4%

Expenditures
Personnel 1,525$             21,102$           312,338$        439,276$        95,166$           12,900$           4,705$             887,012$        6,445,653$     6,775,177$       95%

Operating -$                 2,517$             23,946$           179,080$        (5,104)$            30,390$           65,604$           296,434$        2,652,235$     5,124,800$       52%

Capital Outlay -$                 -$                 -$                 10,500$           -$                 25,777$           -$                 36,277$           77,831$           184,800$          42%

Monthly Expenditures 1,525$             23,619$           336,284$        628,857$        90,062$           69,067$           70,309$           1,219,723$     9,175,719$     12,084,777$    75.9%

Year-to-Date Expenditures 16,329$           179,555$        2,638,297$     4,346,039$     838,693$        392,915$        763,892$        9,175,719$     

Direct Budget 15,043$           299,905$        3,878,817$     3,036,833$     1,219,147$     602,422$        1,508,355$     10,560,522$   

Budget 15,043$           299,905$        4,724,791$     3,682,696$     1,238,534$     602,422$        1,521,386$     12,084,777$   

108.6% 59.9% 55.8% 118.0% 67.7% 65.2% 50.2% 75.9%

 Total Direct budget is $10,560,522 + 

$1,524,255 indirects= $12,084,777 

SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH

BUDGET REPORT FOR APRIL 2021 (FY21)

Fund Balances Year-to-Date Cash Position

 Total Direct budget is $10,560,522 + 

$1,524,255 indirects= $12,084,777 

Revenue



YTD REVENUES

 $-

 $100,000.00

 $200,000.00

 $300,000.00

 $400,000.00

 $500,000.00

 $600,000.00

 $700,000.00

 $800,000.00

 $900,000.00

 $1,000,000.00

JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Contracts

District Funds

Fees

Interest

Other



YTD EXPENDITURES

 $-

 $100,000.00

 $200,000.00

 $300,000.00

 $400,000.00

 $500,000.00

 $600,000.00

 $700,000.00

 $800,000.00

 $900,000.00

 $1,000,000.00

JUL AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN

Personnel

Operating

Capital Outlay



YTD INVESTMENT YIELD TRENDS

0.8580%

0.6659%

0.5798%
0.5621% 0.5555%

0.4493% 0.4493%

0.2934%

0.2065%
0.1836%

0.0000%

0.1000%

0.2000%

0.3000%

0.4000%

0.5000%

0.6000%

0.7000%

0.8000%

0.9000%

1.0000%

 $-

 $500

 $1,000

 $1,500

 $2,000

 $2,500

 $3,000

 $3,500

 $4,000

 $4,500

July August September October November December January February March April May June

Interest Distribution Yield



Title Amount Brief Description FUNDING 
SOURCE

STD/HIV Prevention 
Activities

$84,431 This subgrant provides access to clinical services, HIV testing, partner services, linkage to care, 
PrEP/PEP, and STD Testing. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Women's Health Check $28,625 This subgrant will provide cancer prevention awareness through client reminders, provider 
referrals, small media, and collaboration with other community and non-profit organizations. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

State Supplied Immunizations 
and High Risk Seasonal Flu 
Vaccine

$82,285
This subgrant will conduct activities (marketing, promotion, education, etc.) in direct support of 
increasing immunization rates in Idaho, and conduct other activities with a focus on high risk 
adult populations for influenza. 

Federal/State Mix 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Immunizations $12,200 This subgrant will provide site visits to immunization centers to assess their general knowledge, 
provide technical assistance, and education. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Healthcare School Project $12,967 Collaborative project with partners to bring preventative health services to schools.
Federal 

Pass-through 
Sub-grant

Nurse Family Partnership $515,000 This subgrant provides for the Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 
(MIECHV), nurse supervision and training. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Parents as Teachers $206,206 State funded home visiting program to improve outcomes and reduce justice involvement for 
low-income and high-risk families.

State 
Appropriation

Citizen's Review Panel $19,000 State funded program to support the oversight of DHW's foster care program and improve 
outcomes of children entering the foster care system.

State 
Appropriation

Oral Health $38,150 This subgrant provides dental screenings to school based clinics and parent education.
Federal 

Pass-through 
Sub-grant

State Actions to Improve Oral 
Health

$18,500 This subgrant will plan and coordinate School-Based/Linked Dental Sealant Clinics to children 
and adolescents in elementary and middle schools to improve oral health.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant



Title Amount Brief Description FUNDING 
SOURCE

Oral Health Workforce 
*HRSA

$22,982
This subgrant will provide increased access to oral health services by developing projects in 
Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas and employing the utilization of Silver Diamine 
Fluoride. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Women, Infants, and 
Children (WIC) 

$1,209,122 This subgrant will provide general administration, clients services, breastfeeding promotion, 
nutrition education, and breastfeeding peer counseling to the WIC program.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Public Water Systems 
Contract

$228,906 This subgrant provides funding for the oversight, inspection, and related activities to ensure that 
public drinking water systems comply with applicable state and federal regulations.

Federal
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

RIBHHN - Rural Integrated 
Behavioral Health Hub 
Network * HRSA

$199,999 This grant will provide funding to replicate and implement the Regional Hub for Integrated 
Behavioral Health in additional Health Districts across Idaho. Direct Federal Grant

Regional Behavioral Health 
Board

$200,000 This subgrant will provide administrative services and support of the Regional Behavioral 
Health Board ($50,000 per year).

Federal/State Mix 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Suicide Prevention $35,000
This subgrant will organize and coordinate a Districtwide Collective of individuals, businesses, 
community members, and survivors, whose purpose is to develop a plan with strategies 
consistent with the Idaho State Suicide Prevention Plan to reduce deaths by suicide.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Drug Overdose Prevention 
Program

$108,055 This subgrant will advance opioid prevention work through public and prescriber education, 
local capacity building, public safety partnerships, and the social determinants of health.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Diabetes, Heart Disease, 
Stroke

$42,000 This subgrant will provide community-based diabetes/hypertension prevention and 
management education. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Child Care Health/Safety 
Program and Child Care 
Complaints

$550,000
This subgrant will provide guidance to outline the respective roles of the public health districts 
in implementing the Child Care Health and Safety Program throughout Idaho and help ensure 
that all children in child care settings are in a health and safe environment while receiving care. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Disease Reporting $65,982 This subgrant will provide epidemiologic investigation and reporting on all reported cases of 
disease. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant



Title Amount Brief Description FUNDING 
SOURCE

HIV Surveillance $9,164 This subgrant will provide activities to detect, securely investigate, and complete documented 
cases of reported HIV infection.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

TB Elimination $55,734 This subgrant will allow for directly observed therapy, contact investigations, RVCT reporting, 
EDN reporting, and attendance at tuberculosis-specific training. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Perinatal Hep B $21,150 This subgrant will provide Perinatal Hepatitis B surveillance and case management. 
Federal 

Pass-through 
Sub-grant

NEDSS - National Electronic 
Disease Surveillance System

$356,435 This subgrant will provide vaccine preventable disease surveillance and disease investigation 
data entry. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Adolescent Pregnancy 
Prevention - PREP and TANF

$54,289 This subgrant will conduct activities that support implementation of Reducing the Risk 
curriculum and Youth-Adult Partnership groups to aid in adolescent pregnancy prevention. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Wise Guys $13,163 This subgrant will provide activities to support implementation of Wise Guys 
curriculum/training and statutory rape presentations.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Sexual Risk Avoidance 
Education

$17,455
This subgrant will provide activities that support implementation of the State Sexual Risk 
Avoidance Education curriculum to Idaho students ages ten to fourteen (10-14) at schools, 
community sites, youth centers, sports leagues, faith groups, and juvenile justice centers.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Physical Activity & Nutrition $75,500
This subgrant will provide programmatic activities to the public. This includes but is not limited 
to the following: Fit and Fall Proof fall prevention training and coordination; age friendly park 
assessments; childhood obesity prevention; child and family health.

Federal/State Mix 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Cancer Prevention Activities $27,000
This subgrant will implement evidence-based strategies to increase cancer screening and 
prevention (sun safety training, HPV vaccination reminders, breast and cervical cancer 
screening).

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Millennium Fund $130,000
State appropriated funds to prevent tobacco use among youth and young adults, eliminate 
secondhand smoke, promote quitting among youths and adults, and identify and eliminate 
tobacco related disparities among population groups.  

State 
Appropriation



Title Amount Brief Description FUNDING 
SOURCE

Tobacco Prevention Resource 
Program Activities

$84,000
This subgrant will provide activities to: prevent tobacco use among youth and young adults, 
eliminate secondhand smoke, promote quitting among youths and adults, and identify and 
eliminate tobacco related disparities among population groups.  

Federal
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Healthy Store Initiative $21,000
This subgrant will support the goals and objectives of Idaho's Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program State Plan (SNAP-Ed) to improve the likelihood that Food Stamp Program participants 
have access to and will purchase healthy food choices within a limited budget. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Cuidate $41,280 This subgrant will provide support to the Adolescent Pregnancy Prevention program by 
providing Cuidate Curriculum, implementation, and education.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Partnership for Success $215,271 This subgrant will provide activities for the Be the Parents campaign (parent learning sessions, 
youth leadership activities), and Youth Mental Health (training, screening, referrals).

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Crisis Center $3,240,000 This subgrant allows for the Behavioral Health Community Crisis Center to deliver crisis 
intervention and services to the Region 3 community. $1,520,000 per year.

State
General

Fund

Crisis Center - CFAC Funding $30,000 This subgrant allows for the Behavioral Health Community Crisis Center to deliver crisis 
intervention and services to the Region 3 community specifically targeted to COVID-19 barriers.

Federal
Pass-through 

Sub-grant



Title Amount Brief Description FUNDING 
SOURCE

Preparedness COVID-19 
Response - Preparedness 
Assessment, Cities Readiness 
Initiative

$475,395

This subgrant will provide support to Public Health Emergency Preparedness in the following 
areas: community preparedness and recovery, incident management and emergency operations 
coordination, emergency public information and warning management, medical 
countermeasures dispensing and administration, mass care, fatality management, and public 
health surveillance and epidemiologic investigation.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Preparedness COVID-19 
Supplemental

$360,753 This subgrant provides supplemental funding for the COVID-19 response specific to 
preparedness as it relates to the district's emergency operations and epidemiological response.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

ELC Cares Enhancing Support 
COVID-19

$3,238,721 This subgrant will support the rapid establishment and monitoring of key activities related to 
responding to COVID-19 in the areas of epidemiology, laboratory, and informatics.

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Coronavirus Relief (Schools) - 
COVID-19

$477,500 This subgrants allows for the COVID-19 school response and testing in the following areas: 
Public Health COVID-19 School Point of Contact, school testing, isolation, and contact tracing. 

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant

Kresge Foundation 
COVID-19

$35,000 Aims to decrease barriers to education, testing, and vaccine resources among the 
Hispanic/Latinx community. 

Direct Private 
Foundation Grant

Vaccinations Subgrant- 
COVID-19

$166,722 This subgrant supports a range of COVID-19 vaccination activities.
Federal 

Pass-through 
Sub-grant

Vaccinations DHW  - 
COVID-19 Immunizations

Reimbursement for 
1st and 2nd doses

This grant is to support increased COVID-19 vaccination capacity, safe storage and handling of 
COVID-19 vaccines, ensure equitable distribution and administration, and improve timely 
reporting into the Immunization Reminder Information System (IRIS). Ends April 2021

Federal 
Pass-through 

Sub-grant



   

1 
 

Western Idaho Community Crisis Center 
Advisory Committee Bylaws 
 
LEGAL AUTHORITY: 

Bylaws of the Advisory Committee are amended and adopted by the Southwest District Health 
(SWDH) Board of Health pursuant to the authority granted in Title 39, Chapter 1 through 
Chapter 91, Idaho Code (IC 39-91). The Division of Behavioral Health (DBH), as the state 
behavioral health authority established by section 39-3123, Idaho Code, shall oversee the 
crisis centers to ensure compliance with the intent of this chapter, application of the model, 
associated administrative rules and patient safety. DBH shall be authorized to perform 
annual audits of crisis centers as necessary to fulfill its oversight responsibility. 

 
PREAMBLE: 

These bylaws are to aid the SWDH Board’s WICCC Advisory Committee on guiding the 
organization, implementation, and operation of the center as it provides an effective 
behavioral health service delivery system that meets the needs of its constituency. The 
term of advisory committee membership, appointment authority for members and 
organizational structures shall be guided by these bylaws established by SWDH. (IC 39-
9105)  

 
Article 1. Advisory Committee Membership   
Section 1.1 Eligibility  

The Advisory Committee shall consist of no fewer than five (5) and no more than ten (10) 
members and shall include a minimum of a local behavioral health consumer, a physician, 
law enforcement and a county commissioner from within the region. (IC 39-9104) Advisory 
Committee members shall not have not been convicted of a felony or criminal offense 
related to the delivery of health care. In all proceedings of the Advisory Committee, each 
voting member is entitled to one vote 

Section 1.2 Ex-officio Members 
The Advisory Committee shall include the project manager from SWDH, program manager 
from DBH, and a representative from the vendor operating WICCC. These members make up 
to the ten (10) maximum prescribed in section 1.1. Ex-officio members are non-voting 
members. 



   

2 
 

Section 1.3 Member Nomination Process 
Parties interested in service on the Advisory Committee should inform Chair by submitting a 
nomination form. Nominations will be considered every two years and as members resign. 
When the committee needs a new member, nomination forms will be reviewed and vetted, 
and voted on by current members to recommend appointment by the SWDH BOH. 

Section 1.4 Committee Appointment 
The SWDH BOH will review nominations recommended by the Advisory Committee and vote 
to appoint members.  

Section 1.4 Member Terms 
Appointed members of the committee shall serve a minimum of a two-year term from the 
time appointment is approved by the SWDH BOH. Members are eligible for reappointment 
for a total of 3 consecutive terms. 

Section 1.5 Member Resignation 
Resignation from the Advisory Committee must be in writing and received by the Chair. 

Section 1.6 Member Termination 
Termination of Advisory Committee membership may occur for inappropriate activities as 
determined by the committee. Termination must be approved by a two-thirds majority of 
the Advisory Committee. The member in question of termination may not be present at the 
vote. 

 
Article 2. Officers  
Section 2.1 Election of Officers 

Each year, the Advisory Committee shall elect a chair and vice-chair. The Ex-officio member from 
SWDH will act as secretary. The new officers shall take office on or after the conclusion of the 
advisory meeting in which they are elected. 

Section 2.2 Duties of Chair 
The Chair of the WICCC Advisory Committee shall preside over Advisory Committee meetings 
(regular and special); member nominations; sub-committee appointments; present WICCC 
updates to the SWDH BOH as needed; and perform all duties of the Chair position and office in 
accordance to these bylaws, as required by law, rules and regulation.  

Section 2.3 Duties of Vice-Chair 
During the absence or inability of the Chair to perform their duties, the Vice-Chair shall have the 
powers and be subject to the responsibilities hereby given or imposed upon the Chair.  

Section 2.4 Duties of the Secretary 
The Secretary of the Advisory Committee shall keep minutes, coordinate with WICCC and SWDH 



   

3 
 

for custody and posting of all meeting records, and request the committee to appoint an 
assistant secretary if needed to assist secretary’s duties as prescribed by the secretary.  

 
Article 3. Advisory Committee Meetings 
Section 3.1 Open Public Meetings  

The WICCC Advisory Committee is a committee of SWDH’s Board under provisions of IC 39-
9104(3). The SWDH Board of Health is subject to the Open Meeting Law (IC 74-2), it is therefore 
determined the Advisory Committee is also subject to the provisions of the Open Meeting Law.  

Section 3.2 Meeting Notice 
Notice of regular meetings shall be posted and provided to each member, giving at least 72 
hours' notice and specifying its time and place. Or, if determined by the Advisory Committee to 
hold meetings at regular intervals of at least once per calendar month scheduled in advance 
over the course of the year, meeting notice may be satisfied by giving notice at least once each 
year of its regular meeting schedule.  

Section 3.3 Regular Meetings 
The Advisory Committee will meet at a minimum of once per quarter.  

Section 3.3 Establishing a Quorum 
A simple majority of voting members present shall constitute a quorum. In the event of a 
quorum not being present, no determination, action, vote, or final disposition upon a motion, 
proposal, resolution, order, or measure on which a vote is required shall be made. 

Section 3.4 Voting Authority 
The action of the majority of members’ present shall be the action of the committee. Individual 
members of the Advisory Committee shall not speak for the committee, except on specific 
delegation. All voting is public; secret ballots, proxies, or email voting is prohibited. 

Section 3.4 Attendance 
Members shall attend posted meetings as often as able. If a Member is unable to attend a 
meeting, they should notify an Advisory Committee Officer. Voting by proxy or email shall not 
be allowed.  

Section 3.5 Special Meetings  
Special meetings of the Advisory Committee may be held at any time, and shall be called by the 
chair or majority of the members. A written notice (posted, emailed or faxed) of 24 hours shall 
be given for such special meetings, and no business other than that specified in such notice 
shall be transacted. 

Section 3.6 Virtual Meetings 
All meetings may provide virtual options for attendance. Such options may include, but are not 



   

4 
 

limited to, telephone or video conferencing. Virtual Participation by a member shall constitute 
presence in person by such member. 

Section 3.7 Meeting Minutes  
Neither a full transcript nor a recording of the meeting is required, except as otherwise 
provided by law. All minutes shall be available to the public within a reasonable time after the 
meeting, and shall include at least the following information: members present; all motions, 
resolutions, orders, or ordinances proposed and their disposition; the results of all votes, and 
upon the request of a member, the vote of each member, by name. 

 
Article 4. Parliamentary Authority 

Robert's Rule of Order (Simplified) shall be the governing authority for the order of business and conduct 
of all meetings of the Advisory Committee, and other committees of this organization when not in 
conflict with these By-Laws. 

 

Article 5. Amendments 
These by-laws may be altered, amended, or repealed by an affirmative vote of the SWDH 
Board by a two-thirds majority of all appointed members.  Only such changes as have been 
specified in the notice shall be made. If, however, all members of the Board are present at 
any regular or special meeting, these by-laws may be amended by a unanimous vote, 
without any previous notice. 
 
Article 6. Nondiscrimination  
This Advisory Committee shall be noncommercial, nonsectarian and nonpartisan.  No person shall be 
excluded from membership on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, disability, gender, and 
sexual orientation 
 
Article 7. Conflict of Interest 
Advisory Committee members shall not use positions to promote any personal or professional 
business relationships, contracts, or financial gain. Advisory Committee members shall promptly 
disclose the existence of an actual or possible conflict of interest including any potential financial 
interest and all material facts to the Advisory Committee or the Board of Health. Advisory 
Committee members shall promptly notify the Advisory Committee or the Board of Health should 
any interest become potentially detrimental to WICCC.  Advisory Committee members shall 
acknowledge that each member of the Advisory Committee has a fiduciary duty to WICCC, and as 
part of that duty each member is to maintain absolute confidentiality as to all non-public 
information to which access is available by reason of Advisory Committee membership. Advisory 



   

5 
 

Committee members shall disclose and discuss such information only with appropriate officers, 
employees, agents, and advisors of WICCC and only for valid WICCC purposes or as otherwise 
required by law. 

 

 

These bylaws were first amended and approved at a regular Advisory Committee meeting on the 
October 9, 2019. 
 
Amendments to these bylaws were reviewed by the Advisory Committee on April 14, 2021 and   
recommended for approval by the SWDH Board of Health.  



Fiscal Year 2022 

Budget Request 

  WHAT’S INSIDE: 

Summary 1 
Budget Request 3 
Population and Market Value 4 
County Request 5 
Budget Funding Sources 6 
Fund Balances 7 
Board of Health 8 
Compensation 9 
County Infographics 10-21



BUDGET SUMMARY MAY-21 

Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Summary 

Fiscal Years 2020, 2021, and 2022 have been, and will continue to be, out of the ordinary for 
Southwest District Health (SWDH) due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Federal funds have been infused 

into public health across the state to assist with the COVID-19 pandemic response—first with 
epidemiological investigations, contact tracing, and testing, and now more recently with COVID-19 
vaccination efforts. As a result, SWDH’s proposed budget for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022 is $13,552,240 

which is a 12% increase from FY2021. 

Revenue Highlights 

State Appropriations 
During the 2021 Legislative Session, House Bill 316 (HB316) was passed and signed into law. HB316 

eliminates the State General Fund appropriation to local public health and requires counties to 
contribute more to support the health districts, beginning March 1, 2022. In FY2023, the State 

General Fund appropriation will be eliminated completely, leaving the counties to fully fund that which 
was previously funded by the State using the FY21 State General Fund appropriation level as the 

minimum base. 

County Appropriations 
SWDH is not requesting an increase in County Contributions for FY2022; however due to increases 

in population and property market values, both Adams and Canyon counties will experience an 
increase in their respective contributions, while the remaining counties within the health district will 
see a percent decrease in their contributions. As noted above, with House Bill 316, the counties will 

be required to contribute additional funding to support local public health starting March 1, 2022. 

Fees 
For FY2022, we are budgeting a 9% increase in fee revenue due to higher activity in several 

programs, including Subsurface Sewage Disposal (Septic), Land Development, Food Protection, and 
Immunizations. 

Sub-grants 
This year’s budget reflects an overall increase of 10.5% in sub-grant funding over FY2021. Nearly 
all of this increase is due to continued funding related to epidemiology activities. Also included in 
this budget is a marked increase in funding for Oral Health (HRSA), Septic and Land revenues, 

Drug Overdose Prevention, Childcare, and Tobacco Education and Prevention programs funded 
primarily through federal pass-through sub-grants.  

1



BUDGET SUMMARY MAY-21 

Expense Highlights 

Salaries 
Last year, SWDH’s Board of Health opted not to approve salary increases to staff for FY2021 due to 
uncertainties in the economy due to COVID-19.  SWDH has been on the front lines of the pandemic 

response for the last year and every employee’s work has been impacted in one way or another. 
The district could not have faired as well as it did this past year without the dedicated and committed 
staff at SWDH. To address disparities in salaries, increases in employee cost for insurances, and to 
recognize the hard work of SWDH staff, included in this budget is a 2% salary increase as approved 

in the March board meeting which will be distributed to employees based on performance. 

Employee Benefits 
All employer benefit costs have remained relatively unchanged from FY2021. Of note, however, for 
FY2022, the cost to employees for medical and dental insurance is increasing an average of 8.7% 

(medical) and 4.2% (dental) for full time employees and an average of 3.15% (medical) and 3% 
(dental) for part time employees. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating costs are the ongoing expenses incurred from normal day-to-day activities. Overall, 

budgeted operating expenses for FY2022 have decreased slightly over last year.  

Capital Expenses 
In addition to necessary infrastructure improvements, included in this year’s request is $90,000 of 
board committed funds for vehicle replacement using monies set aside in the LGIP account as has 
been done in the past.  Last year, SWDH opted not to replace vehicles due to the uncertainty of the 
pandemic.  However, some vehicles are in need of replacement due to high mileage as well as the 

nature of their use in very rural and difficult terrain. 

Trustee and Benefit Expenses 
Trustee and Benefit expenses are those costs associated with pass through funding to third parties 

for activities required by grant/sub-grant deliverables. 

Summary 
SWDH’s FY2022 budget request has increased compared to historical budgets due to an estimated 
increase in activities in Septic, Land Development, Food Protections, Immunizations, and COVID-19 

programs. SWDH appreciates the support we receive from our counties and looks forward to an 
even closer working relationship in the years to come as we work hard to support the health and 

well-being of the residents in our communities. 

2



District Summary FY2020 FY2021 FY2022
Budget Budget Request*

REVENUE
Fees $1,705,615 $1,715,979 $1,874,852
Contracts $3,713,133 $4,152,338 $5,194,475
County Funds $1,381,174 $1,401,892 $1,401,892
County Funds HB316 Mar - June ** $0 $0 $491,100
State Appropriation $1,444,400 $1,442,900 $985,800
Millennium Fund Appropriation $129,500 $129,500 $130,000
Interest $70,000 $80,000 $50,000
Sale of Land, Buildings & Equip $15,000 $20,000 $20,000
Other $11,200 $14,986 $24,000
Carry-Over Funds $476,416 $70,027 $169,000
Reserve $10,000 $12,900 $90,000
Total Revenue $8,956,438 $9,040,522 $10,431,119

EXPENDITURES
Salary & Wage * $4,578,980 $4,657,914 $5,733,833
Employee Benefits * $2,111,261 $2,117,263 $2,631,858
Merit Increase * $166,500 $0 $0
Operating Expenses $1,909,791 $2,080,545 $1,743,528
Capital Outlay $189,906 $184,800 $197,400
Trustee Benefits (Pass-thru funds) $0 $0 $124,500
Total Expenditures $8,956,438 $9,040,522 $10,431,119

CRISIS CENTER
Contract Revenue $1,520,000 $1,520,000 $1,083,289
Expenditures $1,520,000 $1,520,000 $1,083,289

GRAND TOTAL
Revenues $10,476,438 $10,560,522 $11,514,408
Expenditures $10,476,438 $10,560,522 $11,514,408

FTEs 95.7 97.1 116.7
COVID 12.0

BASE 104.7

May-21

Southwest District Health
FY2022 Budget Request
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022

*2% Change in Employee Compensation accounted for in Salary and Wages as approved by the board on March 16, 2021.

** Based on FY22 State Appropriation (March - June, 2022)

3



FY 2021 FY 2022 Population FY 2021 FY 2022 TMV
2019 Pop 2020 Pop Percent CY 2019 CY 2020 Percent

County Estimate Estimate Change Change

Adams 4,294 4,323 0.7% $595,684,570 $670,181,179 12.5%
Canyon 229,849 232,313 1.1% $15,190,228,354 $17,104,468,660 12.6%
Gem 18,112 17,900 -1.2% $1,308,254,243 $1,480,679,317 13.2%
Owyhee 11,823 11,792 -0.3% $738,765,837 $809,239,280 9.5%
Payette 23,951 23,780 -0.7% $1,706,234,290 $1,928,302,133 13.0%
Washington 10,194 10,189 0.0% $907,085,609 $957,067,413 5.5%
TOTAL 298,223 300,297 $20,446,252,903 $22,949,937,982

17-May-21
Population: provided by Idaho Department of Commerce - ID39-424
Net Taxable Values: provided by State of Idaho Tax Commission

Changes in County Population and Net Taxable Market Value (TMV)

Net Taxable Values

Southwest District Health
Population & Market Value

4



County Contribution     =          70% Population Distribution          +          30% Taxable Market Value (TMV)

2020
Population 70%: Dollar 30%: Dollar Total

County Estimate Population Amount TMV Amount Contribution

ADAMS 4,323 1.44% $5,886 2.92% $5,117 $11,003
CANYON 232,313 77.36% $316,318 74.53% $130,603 $446,921

GEM 17,900 5.96% $24,373 6.45% $11,306 $35,679
OWYHEE 11,792 3.93% $16,056 3.53% $6,179 $22,235
PAYETTE 23,780 7.92% $32,379 8.40% $14,724 $47,103

WASHINGTON 10,189 3.39% $13,873 4.17% $7,308 $21,181
TOTAL 300,297 100.00% $408,885 100.00% $175,236 $584,122

Monthly Contribution
ADAMS $2,201

CANYON $89,384
GEM $7,136

OWYHEE $4,447
PAYETTE $9,421

WASHINGTON $4,236

2020
Population 70%: Dollar 30%: Dollar Total

County Estimate Population Amount TMV Amount Contribution

ADAMS 4,323 1.44% $13,190 2.92% $11,466 $24,656
CANYON 232,313 77.36% $708,789 74.53% $292,648 $1,001,438

GEM 17,900 5.96% $54,613 6.45% $25,334 $79,947
OWYHEE 11,792 3.93% $35,978 3.53% $13,846 $49,823
PAYETTE 23,780 7.92% $72,553 8.40% $32,992 $105,545

WASHINGTON 10,189 3.39% $31,087 4.17% $16,375 $47,461
TOTAL 300,297 100.00% $916,209 100.00% $392,661 $1,308,870

Monthly Contribution Increase/mo
ADAMS $4,931 $2,731

CANYON $200,288 $110,903
GEM $15,989 $8,854

OWYHEE $9,965 $5,518
PAYETTE $21,109 $11,689

WASHINGTON $9,492 $5,256

Approved Requested Dollar Percentage
County FY2021 FY2022 Change Change
ADAMS $26,368 $35,659 $9,291 35.24%

CANYON $1,068,816 $1,448,358 $379,542 35.51%
GEM $86,515 $115,625 $29,110 33.65%

OWYHEE $54,087 $72,058 $17,971 33.23%
PAYETTE $113,888 $152,648 $38,760 34.03%

WASHINGTON $52,217 $68,643 $16,425 31.46%
TOTAL $1,401,892 $1,892,992 $491,100 35.03%

17-May-21

N
ew

 
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 

M
ar

 - 
Se

pt
em

be
r

TOTAL

March 2022 - September 2022

Cu
rr

en
t 

Co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

County Request - 0% Increase + House Bill 316

Budget Request for County Fiscal Year 2022
Period Covered:  October 2021 - September 2022

Based Upon Idaho Code 39-424 & HB316

October 2021 - February 2022

Southwest District Health

5



17-May-21

FY 2022

Budget Funding Sources

*Does not include Crisis Center contract funds in the amount of $1,083,289

Carry-Over
$169,000

2%

Contracts
$5,194,475

50%
County

$1,401,892
13%

County HB316
$491,100

5%

Fees
$1,874,852

18%

Mil Fund
$130,000

1%

Other
$184,000

2%

State
$985,800

9%

6



Restricted Funds $207,112
(Restricted funds include funds for Behavioral Health Board, 

  Parents as Teachers, and Citizen Review Panel)

Committed Funds $525,382
(Committed funds include funds for 27th Payperiod, Medical Equipment,

  Computer/EMR Replacements, Capital Projects, Website Upgrade, and Auto LGIP)

Capital Reserve Fund (LGIP) $1,299,174
Unrestricted Operating Funds $3,646,832

$5,678,500

Southwest District Health
Summary of Restricted and Committed Funds - FY 2021

Restricted Funds - Third party restricted 

Committed Funds - Committed by the Board of Health for a specific purpose

Restricted Funds Committed Funds

Behavioral Health Board $4,383.47

Parents as Teachers $199,786.39

Citizen's Review Panel $2,942.53

Medical Equipment & Training $75,000.00

Computer/EMR Replacements $138,760.00

Capital Projects $143,246.05

27th Payperiod $51,500.00

Website Upgrade $17,230.00

Vehicles (LGIP Auto Replacement ) $99,646.00

$207,112.39 $525,382.05

17-May-21

Southwest District Health
Fund Balances - as of March 31, 2021

7



Commissioner Bryan Elliott, Chairman – Gem County 

Commissioner Kelly Aberasturi, Vice-Chairman – Owyhee County 

Dr. Sam Summers – Physician Representative 

Commissioner Viki Purdy – Adams County 

Commissioner Keri Smith – Canyon County 

Commissioner Georgia Hanigan, Trustee – Payette County 

Commissioner Lyndon Haines – Washington County 

Board of Health 

8



22.2% 12.8%

SOUTHWEST DISTRICT HEALTH 
EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION 

FY20-FY21

14% 16% 22%

TREND ALERT
Employee Turnover Rate

Southwest District Health 
Turnover Rate

Number of separations
18

Statewide
Turnover Rate

Number of separations
1,676

 MERIT INCREASES

04232021

RECRUITING MARKET
Comparison between PHD3 & PHD4

3% increase in
employee

compensation 

Canyon County Data 2019-2020

March 2020

Present

CHANGES IN AFFORDABLE HOUSING
Canyon County Data 2019-2021

2019
$283k

2020
$328k

2021
$399k

Canyon County Median Home Price

Canyon County Average Home Price % Increase

ADAMS COUNTY CANYON COUNTY GEM COUNTY OWYHEE COUNTY PAYETTE COUNTY WASHINGTON COUNTY SOUTHWEST 
DISTRICT HEALTH

*In Canyon County, home prices are expected to
increase by 33% over the next three years.

0% increase in
employee

compensation 

+ 2.6%

Appendix E

9



19% 10%

21% 32% 45% 74%

ADAMS COUNTY 
Healthier Together FY20

Health Outcomes
ADAMS COUNTY

of Adams County
residents report 

poor or fair health

of babies born 
in Adams County

have a low birth rate 

04222021

Health outcomes are
changes in health that

result from specific
health care investments

or interventions.

Life expectancy 
in Adams County is

80.1 years

Adams County 
ranks 39 out of 43 

ranked counties in Idaho

Health Factors
ADAMS COUNTY

Health Factors
represent those things

we can modify to
improve the length and

quality of life for
residents.

of adults 
in Adams County 

smoke tobacco

of adults 
in Adams County are

considered obese

of children 
in Adams County are

eligible for free or
reduced lunch

of Adams County
residents 

have access to
broadband internet

10



Health Investment in
ADAMS COUNTY 

Clinic Services

 
immunizations
administered

 
immunization
appointments

6
 
2

 
WIC participants

36

04222021

$3,733,384.60
 spent in 
WIC vouchers*

Environmental Health

septic permits

21 33
pool inspections

July 2019 - June 2020

County Health Rankings & Roadmaps. 2021. How Healthy is your County? | County Health Rankings. [online] Available at: <https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/> [Accessed 24 April 2021].
*Represents District-wide data

11



20%

19% 35% 52% 82%

CANYON COUNTY 
Healthier Together FY20

10%

Health Outcomes
CANYON COUNTY

of Canyon County
residents report 

poor or fair health

04222021

Health outcomes are
changes in health
that result from

specific health care
investments or
interventions.

Life expectancy 
in Canyon County is

79.1 years

Canyon County ranks
19 out of 43 ranked
counties in Idaho

Health Factors
CANYON  COUNTY

Health Factors
represent those things

we can modify to
improve the length

and quality of life for
residents.

of adults 
in Canyon County 

smoke tobacco

of adults 
in Canyon County are

considered obese

of children 
in Canyon County are

eligible for free or
reduced lunch

of Canyon County
residents 

have access to
broadband internet

of adults in 
Canyon County 

are diabetic 

12



Health Investment in
CANYON COUNTY 

Clinic Services
 

Community Health
 

59
cases of 

campylobacteriosis

 
immunizations
administered

 
3,594 $3,733,384.60

 spent in 
WIC vouchers*

 
WIC participants

8,630

04222021

356
Environmental Health

 

septic permits

 

271
 

Fit and Fall Proof™
participants

Communicable Diseases
 2,314

reportable diseases 
reported

1,776
fluoride varnishes applied

44
dental sealants applied

766
19893

signed land
development plats

122
accessory use
permits issued

230
Parents as Teachers home visits

1,559
Nurse Family Partnership home visits

173
 

residents screened
for heart disease
and diabetes risk

266
 

residents participating
in tobacco cessation

classes

12
 

risk reduction and
pregnancy prevention

cohorts taught

122
cases of pertussis

July 2019 - June 2020

County Health Rankings & Roadmaps. 2021. How Healthy is your County? | County Health Rankings. [online] Available at: <https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/> [Accessed 24 April 2021].
*Represents District-wide data 13



20% 8%

21% 38% 46% 78%

GEM COUNTY 
Healthier Together FY20

Health Outcomes
GEM COUNTY

of Gem County
residents report 

poor or fair health

of babies born 
in Gem County have a

low birth rate 

04222021

Health outcomes are
changes in health
that result from

specific health care
investments or
interventions.

Life expectancy 
in Gem County is

78.2 years

Gem County ranks 25
out of 43 ranked
counties in Idaho

Health Factors
GEM COUNTY

Health Factors
represent those things

we can modify to
improve the length

and quality of life for
residents.

of adults 
in Gem County 
smoke tobacco

of adults 
in Gem County are
considered obese

of children 
in Gem County are
eligible for free or

reduced lunch

of Gem County
residents 

have access to
broadband internet

14



Health Investment in
Gem COUNTY 

Clinic Services
 

 
immunizations
administered

 
695 $3,733,384.60

 spent in 
WIC vouchers*

 

70 women enrolled
in Women's Health
Check, 4 were
treated for breast
or cervical cancer 

 
WIC participants

 
482

04222021

78
Environmental Health

 

septic permits

 
County Health Rankings & Roadmaps. 2021. How Healthy is your County? | County Health Rankings. [online] Available at: <https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/> [Accessed 24 April 2021].
*Represents District-wide data

Community Health
 Gem County

Community Health
Action Team (CHAT) 

 conducted a
walkability assessment

to make
recommendations 

for increasing
pedestrian safety

38
 

Fit and Fall Proof™
participants

10
signed land

development plats

Communicable Diseases
 

111
 

reportable diseases reported

July 2019 - June 2020

83
55

accessory use
permits issued

15



24% 8%

21% 40% 58% 74%

OWYHEE COUNTY 
Healthier Together FY20

Health Outcomes
OWYHEE COUNTY

of Owyhee County
residents report 

poor or fair health

of babies born 
in Owyhee County

have a low birth rate 

04222021

Health outcomes are
changes in health
that result from

specific health care
investments or
interventions.

Life expectancy 
in Owyhee County is

78.2 years

Owyhee County 
ranks 42 out of 43 

ranked counties in Idaho

Health Factors
OWYHEE COUNTY

Health Factors
represent those things

we can modify to
improve the length

and quality of life for
residents.

of adults 
in Owyhee County 

smoke tobacco

of adults 
in Owyhee County

are considered obese

of children 
in Owyhee County
are eligible for free
or reduced lunch

of Owyhee County
residents 

have access to
broadband internet

16



Health Investment in
OWYHEE COUNTY 

Clinic Services
 

 
immunizations
administered

74
 

WIC participants

424

04222021

$3,733,384.60
 spent in 
WIC vouchers*

Environmental Health

septic permits

58 69
pool inspections

 
175

 
fluoride varnishes

applied

Community Health
 

20
 

Fit and Fall Proof™
participants

12
 

residents screened
for heart disease
and diabetes risk

21
 

residents participating
in tobacco cessation

classes

County Health Rankings & Roadmaps. 2021. How Healthy is your County? | County Health Rankings. [online] Available at: <https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/> [Accessed 24 April 2021].
*Represents District-wide data

July 2019 - June 2020

17



20%

19% 38% 51% 80%

PAYETTE COUNTY 
Healthier Together FY20

Health Outcomes
PAYETTE COUNTY

of Payette County
residents report 

poor or fair health

04222021

Health outcomes are
changes in health
that result from

specific health care
investments or
interventions.

Life expectancy 
in Payette County is

76.6 years

Payette County ranks
40 out of 43 ranked
counties in Idaho

Health Factors
PAYETTE COUNTY

Health Factors
represent those things

we can modify to
improve the length

and quality of life for
residents.

of adults 
in Payette County 

smoke tobacco

of adults 
in Payette County

are considered obese

of children 
in Payette County

are eligible for free
or reduced lunch

of Payette County
residents 

have access to
broadband internet

11%

of adults in 
Payette County 

are diabetic 

18



Health Investment in
PAYETTE COUNTY 

Clinic Services

 
immunizations
administered

452 $3,733,384.60
 spent in 
WIC vouchers*

 
WIC participants

260

04222021

70
Environmental Health

septic permits

Community Health
 

72
 

Fit and Fall Proof™
participants

Communicable Diseases

193
 

reportable diseases reported

132
fluoride varnishes applied

43
dental sealants applied

97
114

signed land
development plats

8
accessory use
permits issued

County Health Rankings & Roadmaps. 2021. How Healthy is your County? | County Health Rankings. [online] Available at: <https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/> [Accessed 24 April 2021].
*Represents District-wide data

July 2019 - June 2020

89
Parents as Teachers 

home visits

Payette County
Community Health
Action Team (CHAT)

identified its mission
statement and health

priority areas. 
PCHAT is focused on

behavioral health access,
youth substance use,

food access and
transportation.

19



22% 11%

21% 36% 45% 74%

WASHINGTON COUNTY 
Healthier Together FY20

Health Outcomes
WASHINGTON COUNTY

of Washington
County residents

report poor or fair
health

of adults in
Washington County

are diabetic 

04222021

Health outcomes are
changes in health
that result from

specific health care
investments or
interventions.

Life expectancy 
in Washington

County is 78.7 years

Washington County
ranks 22 out of 43
ranked counties in

Idaho

Health Factors
WASHINGTON  COUNTY

Health Factors
represent those things

we can modify to
improve the length

and quality of life for
residents.

of adults 
in Washington
County smoke

tobacco

of adults 
in Washington

County are
considered obese

of children 
in Washington County
are eligible for free or

reduced lunch

of Washington
County residents 

have access to
broadband internet

20



Health Investment in
WASHINGTON COUNTY 

Clinic Services
 

 
immunizations
administered

 
487 $3,733,384.60

 spent in 
WIC vouchers*

260
WIC participants

04222021

21
Environmental Health

septic permits

54

pool inspections

Community Health
 

68
 

Fit and Fall Proof™
participants

2
signed land

development plats

Communicable Diseases

57
 

reportable diseases reported

 
13

 
fluoride varnishes

applied

5

July 2019 - June 2020

County Health Rankings & Roadmaps. 2021. How Healthy is your County? | County Health Rankings. [online] Available at: <https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/> [Accessed 24 April 2021].
*Represents District-wide data

21



FTE # Position Title Role & Responsibilities Funding Source Transition plan, if applicable

1 Program Manager

Oversee daily operations and supervise COVID-19 

program. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Sr. Research Analyst Provide data analytics related to COVID-19. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

0.56 Public Information Officer Provide marketing and communications for COVID-19. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Absorb time in other Agency programs; district dollars.

0.2 Division Administrator

Provide supervision and oversight of COVID-19 program 

manager. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Absorb time in other division programs.

1 HR Associate Provide HR support to COVID-19 program. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Customer Svc Rep 2 Oversee COVID-19 call center. COVID-19 Immunizations subgrant.

Absorb call center work into customer service call center; 

eliminate position.

1 Lab Tech

Provides testing & customer service representative 

duties. COVID-19 Immunizations subgrant. Eliminate position.

2 Epidemiologist Oversee COVID-19 investigations team. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Health Edu Spec Conduct COVID-19 investigations. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Health Edu Spec Conduct COVID-19 investigations. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Health Edu Spec Conduct COVID-19 investigations. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Health Edu Spec Conducts COVID-19 vaccine operations. COVID-19 Immunizations subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Health Edu Spec Conduct COVID-19 investigations. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.

1 Health Edu Spec Conduct COVID-19 investigations. ELC Cares COVID-19 subgrant. Eliminate position.








































	May 2021 BoH agenda
	04272021 BoH minutes draft NZ
	FY21 Monthly Financial - Apr
	05042021 Special BoH minutes DRAFT NZ (Zogg, Nikole)
	BOH Report - Contracts Update
	PCAList (2)

	WICCC Proposed Amended Bylaws - reviewed and recommended to BOH
	Article 2. Officers
	Section 2.1 Election of Officers
	Article 3. Advisory Committee Meetings
	Section 3.5 Special Meetings
	Article 4. Parliamentary Authority
	Article 5. Amendments
	Article 7. Conflict of Interest
	Advisory Committee members shall not use positions to promote any personal or professional business relationships, contracts, or financial gain. Advisory Committee members shall promptly disclose the existence of an actual or possible conflict of inte...

	FY22 Budget packet draft 05142021
	Cover page
	FY22 Budget Request
	Budget Req

	FY22 Population & Market Value
	Mrkt Values & Population

	FY22 County Request
	County Req - 0%

	Budget Funding Sources (graph) FY22
	Graphs

	FY22 Fund Balances
	Sheet1

	FY22 SWDH Board of Health
	Compensation
	Adams County - FY20 Infographic
	Owyhee County - FY20 Infographics
	Payette County - FY20 Infographic
	Washington County - FY20 Infographic

	Budget FTE justification
	BC031400 Regional Behavioral Health
	19-ADM-61 BHB SWDH MOA 100419 fully executed



